
TCOG Governing Board 
Meeting Agenda 

Presiding Location: 1117 Gallagher Drive, Suite 270, Sherman, Texas  
November 18, 2021 – 6:00p.m. 

AS: Aging Services Department    AF: Administration & Finance Department    CS: Client Services Department    ES: Energy Services    RS: Regional Services 
Pursuant to the Texas Open Meeting Act, Government Code Chapter 551 one or more of the above items may be considered in executive session closed to the public, including but not limited to 
consultation with attorney pursuant to Texas Government Code Section 551.071 and Section 551.074 arising out of the attorney's ethical duty to advise TCOG concerning legal issues arising from an 
agenda item. Any decision held on such matter will be taken or conducted in open session following the conclusion of the executive session.  

Pursuant to Section 551.127 of the Texas Government Code, and in conjunction with the guidance and provisions provided by the Governor of Texas in the declaration of disaster and subsequent 
executive orders altering certain Open Meeting Act provisions and ordering that gatherings of more than ten (10) people shall be avoided, there will be no in-person public access to the location described 
above and less than a quorum may be physically present at the location. The dial-in number to participate in the telephonic meeting is listed above. Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this 
meeting and who may need auxiliary aids or services are requested to contact Administration & Finance at 903-813-3514 two (2) work days prior to the meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be 
made. The above Agenda was posted online at https://www.tcog.com. The Agenda was also emailed to the County Clerk offices in Cooke and Fannin Counties, TX on Friday, January 15, 2020. 

A. Call to Order & Declaration of a Quorum

B. Invocation and Pledges

C. Welcome Guests

D. Public Comment

E. Induct New Governing Board Members for 2021-2023
a. TCOG Governing Board Pledge: In accepting this responsibility as a Governing Board member, do
you pledge: to uphold the bylaws of the organization, to be faithful in attendance, to strive to
achieve the TCOG mission while representing our constituents, to foster full and active participation
of all Governing Board members, and to promote our strengths as a region.

F. Executive Director’s Report
1. Update on Strategic Priorities / Key Activities

G. Approval of Minutes: Approve Meeting Minutes for October 21, 2021

H. Action
1. Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) Weatherization 2021 Contract

Extension (ES): Ratify contract extension for the 2021 LIHEAP-Weatherization with the Texas
Department of Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA).
Evan Brown, Weatherization Program Manager -- page 4

2. Professional Services Agreement (AF): Authorization to enter into a Professional Services
Agreement with E3 Entegral Solutions, Inc. (E3).
Eric Bridges, Executive Director -- page 12

3. FYE 2022 Cost Pool Budgets Update (AF): Accept recommendation, if any, regarding TCOG’s
FYE 2022 Cost Pool Budgets.
Mindi Jones, Finance Director -- page 30

4. FYE 2022 Cost Pool Allocations (AF): Accept recommendation, if any, regarding TCOG’s FYE
2022 Cost Pool Budget Rate changes.
Mindi Jones, Finance Director

I. President’s Report

J. Adjourn

APPROVAL 

_________________________ 
Eric M. Bridges, Executive Director 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88250484584?pwd=MFkwa2wxQVRHQ2Y0bGpjR1NmWkIxUT09


TCOG Governing Board Minutes 
Presiding Location: 1117 Gallagher Drive, Sherman, Texas 

Thursday, October 21, 2021 5:30p 

AS: Aging Services Department    AF: Administration & Finance Department    CS: Client Services Department    ES: Energy Services    RS: Regional Services 

Pursuant to the Texas Open Meeting Act, Government Code Chapter 551 one or more of the above items may be considered in executive session closed to the public, including but not limited to consultation with attorney pursuant to 
Texas Government Code Section 551.071 and Section 551.074 arising out of the attorney's ethical duty to advise TCOG concerning legal issues arising from an agenda item. Any decision held on such matter will be taken or conducted in 
open session following the conclusion of the executive session. 

Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who may need auxiliary aids or services are requested to contact Administration & Finance at 903-813-3514 two (2) work days prior to the meeting so that appropriate 
arrangements can be made. The above Agenda was posted online at http://www.tcog.com and physically posted at the Texoma Council of Governments offices in a place readily accessible to the public. The Agenda was also emailed to 
the County Clerk offices in Cooke, Fannin and Grayson Counties. 

Members Present: James Thorne, Daniel Harrison, Ken Keeler, Jeff Whitmire, Edwina Lane, Sandra Melton, 
Nathan Caldwell (Zoom), Scott Neu (Zoom), Randy Moore (Zoom)  

Members Absent: David Odom, Adam Arendt, Bryan Wilson 

A. Jeff Whitmire called the meeting to order and declared a quorum at 5:34 p.m.

B. Ken Keeler provided the invocation and led the pledges.

C. Guests included: Stephanie Davidson, Teffany Cavanaugh, Jacob Samford, Judy Fullylove, Delano Smith,
Virginia Rhodes, Molly Guard, Beth Eggar, Miranda Harp, Mary Browning-Rodriguez, Mindi Jones, Brandon
Shelby, Eric Bridges, and Tonya Nyberg.

D. There was no Public Comment.

E. No New Governing Board Members were inducted

F. Executive Director’s Report
1. Eric Bridges introduced new Public Information & Media Manager Tonya Nyberg to the board.
2. Eric Bridges directed members to his Executive Director’s Report in their Board packets; providing an

update on strategic priorities and key activities.

G. Presentation of TCOG Audit Report for Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

H. Ken Keeler made a motion to approve the meeting minutes for September 16, 2021. Daniel Harrison
seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.

I. Action
1. At 5:58p, Jeff Whitmire announced that the Board would convene into a closed Executive Session

pursuant to Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code to seek legal advice from its attorney.
a. At 6:29p, the Board reconvened into open meeting. Sandra Melton made a motion for attorney

Brandon Shelby to work with the Executive Director to draft a Release Agreement connected to
the intended remediation of mold from inside the home of a Weatherization Assistance Program
client; and provide said Agreement back to the Governing Board for review. The motion was
seconded by Ken Keeler. The motion carried unanimously. Sandra Melton left the meeting at
6:31 p.m.

2. A motion was made by Daniel Harrison to accept TCOG’s Audit Report as presented; to authorize staff
to make payment to the audit firm in accordance with the terms of the engagement letter; and to
authorize distribution of the Audit Report to appropriate grantor agencies. The motion was seconded by
Edwina Lane. The motion carried unanimously.

3. A motion was made by Ken Keeler to authorize the submission and if approved, to accept the United
Way Grayson County grant application for the AmeriCorps seniors Foster Grandparents Program in the
amount of $20,000. The motion was seconded by Daniel Harrison. The motion carried unanimously.

4. A motion was made by Ken Keeler to accept staff recommendation on the 2021 CEAP APRA contract
with TDHCA. The motion was seconded by Nathan Caldwell. The motion carried unanimously.

5. A motion was made by Daniel Harrison to approve the 2021 Texoma Threat & Hazard Identification
Risk Assessment (THIRA), Stakeholder Preparedness Review (SPR), and the 2022 Regional
Implementation Plan. The motion was seconded by Ken Keeler. The motion carried unanimously.

6. A motion was made by Edwina Lane to approve the Texoma Regional Risk Informed Methodology and
Funding Process for the FY22 Office of the Governor’s Homeland Security Grant Division Grant
Solicitation. The motion was seconded by Randy Moore. The motion carried unanimously.

7. A motion was made by Daniel Harrison to approve the recommended by-law of changes for the TCOG
Homeland Security Advisory Committee (HSAC). The motion was seconded by Edwina Lane. The motion
carried unanimously.

Page 2



TCOG Governing Board Minutes 
Presiding Location: 1117 Gallagher Drive, Sherman, Texas 

Thursday, October 21, 2021 5:30p 

AS: Aging Services Department    AF: Administration & Finance Department    CS: Client Services Department    ES: Energy Services    RS: Regional Services 

Pursuant to the Texas Open Meeting Act, Government Code Chapter 551 one or more of the above items may be considered in executive session closed to the public, including but not limited to consultation with attorney pursuant to 
Texas Government Code Section 551.071 and Section 551.074 arising out of the attorney's ethical duty to advise TCOG concerning legal issues arising from an agenda item. Any decision held on such matter will be taken or conducted in 
open session following the conclusion of the executive session. 

Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who may need auxiliary aids or services are requested to contact Administration & Finance at 903-813-3514 two (2) work days prior to the meeting so that appropriate 
arrangements can be made. The above Agenda was posted online at http://www.tcog.com and physically posted at the Texoma Council of Governments offices in a place readily accessible to the public. The Agenda was also emailed to 
the County Clerk offices in Cooke, Fannin and Grayson Counties. 

8. There was no action taken regarding TCOG’s FYE 2022 Cost Pool Budgets.
9. There was no action taken regarding TCOG’s allocation rates.

J. President’s Report
1. Jeff Whitmire thanks the board members for their attendance.

K. Jeff Whitmire adjourned the meeting at 6:50 p.m.

Page 3



 

TO: TCOG Governing Board 

THRU: Judy Fullylove, Energy Services Director - JF 

FROM: Evan Brown, Weatherization Program Manager- EB 

DATE: November 8, 2021 

RE: Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) Weatherization 2021 
Contract Extension 

RECOMMENDATION 
Ratify contract extension for the 2021 LIHEAP-Weatherization with the Texas Department of Housing 
and Community Affairs (TDHCA).  

BACKGROUND 
The TDHCA LIHEAP – Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP) reduces utility costs by minimizing the 
infiltration of air in homes.  The program is available to owner or renter-occupied units and provides 
energy improvements such as insulation in the attic, walls, and floors, caulking, weather-striping, and 
repair or replacement of heating and air-conditioning units.  All improvements must be verified in 
accordance with the WAP energy audit. This program serves the following nineteen (19) counties:  
Bowie, Camp, Cass, Collin, Cooke, Delta, Denton, Fannin, Franklin, Grayson, Hopkins, Hunt, Lamar, 
Marion, Morris, Rains, Red River, Rockwall and Titus.   

DISCUSSION 
TDHCA has extended the 2021 LIHEAP-Weatherization contract ending date from December 31, 2021 
to March 31, 2022 to allow full expenditure of contract funds. 

BUDGET 
No change is budget amount of $914,747.00 

Page 4



TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO CONTRACT NUMBER  81210003428 

FY 2021 LOW-INCOME HOME ENERGY ASSISTANCE ACT WEATHERIZATION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

(CFDA# 93.568)

This Amendment No. 2 to Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program ("LIHEAP") Weatherization Assistance 

Program "WAP" Contract Number. 81210003428 by and between the Texas Department of Housing and Community 

Affairs, a public and official agency of the State of Texas ("Department") and  Texoma Council of Governments,  a 

political subdivision of the State of Texas ("Subrecipient")  hereinafter collectively referred to as "Parties".

        WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Contract in the manner provided herein below.

  WHEREAS, the Department and Subrecipient, respectively, executed FY 2021 LIHEAP WAP Contract Number 

81210003428 and

RECITALS

SECTION 1.

AGREEMENTS

   NOW THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 

Parties agree as follows:

The following Contract sections, addendums and exhibits are hereby amended as follows:

1. SECTION 2. CONTRACT TERM

The Contract shall commence on January 01, 2021 and, unless earlier terminated, shall end on March 31, 2022

("Contract Term).

2. SECTION 19. TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE AND MONITORING is hereby amended to read as follows:

A. Department may issue technical guidance to explain the rules and provide directions on the terms of this 

Contracts.  Installation of weatherization materials shall be in accordance with the current adopted versions 

of Standard Work Specification (SWS) and INTERNATIONAL Residential Code specifications.

SECTION 2.  

All of the remaining terms of the Contract shall be and remain in full force and effect as therein set forth and shall 

continue to govern except to the extent that said terms conflict with the terms of this Amendment. In the event this  

Amendment and the terms of the Contract are in conflict, this Amendment shall govern, unless it would make the 

Contract void by law.

SECTION 3.  

Each capitalized term not expressly defined herein shall have the meaning given to such term in the Contract.

Exhibit A.  Budget and Performance Statement, of this Contract is hereby deleted and replaced in its entirety with 

the attached Exhibit A. 

3.

Page 1 of 4Page 5



This Amendment may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original copy, and all 

of which together shall constitute one agreement binding on Parties, notwithstanding that all the Parties shall not have 

signed the same counterpart.

SECTION 4.  

SECTION 5.  

If any of the Parties returns a copy by facsimile machine or electronic transmission, the signing party intends the copy 

of its authorized signature printed by the receiving machine or the electronic transmission to be its original signature.

SECTION 6.  

By signing this Amendment, the Parties expressly understand and agree that its terms shall become a part of the 

Contract as if it were set forth word for word therein.

SECTION 7.  

This Amendment shall be binding upon the Parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

SECTION 8.  

This Amendment shall be effective and memorializes an effective date of October 15, 2021.

WITNESS OUR HAND EFFECTIVE:  October 15, 2021 

By:       

Title:  Its duly authorized officer or representative

Date:  

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS, 

a public and official agency of the State of Texas

By:        

Title:   

Date:   

Texoma Council of Governments

SUBRECIPIENT:

DEPARTMENT:

a political subdivision of the State of Texas

Page 2 of 4Page 6



TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO CONTRACT NUMBER  81210003428  FOR THE

FY 2021 LOW-INCOME HOME ENERGY ASSISTANCE ACT WEATHERIZATION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

(CFDA# 93.568)

EXHIBIT A

BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE STATEMENT

Texoma Council of Governments

a political subdivision of the State of Texas

DEPARTMENT FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS

$ 912,747.00 LIHEAP FUNDS CURRENTLY AVAILABLE

$ 2,000.00 TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE FUNDS CURRENTLY AVAILABLE

$ 912,747.00 TOTAL ANTICIPATED LIHEAP FUNDS

$ 2,000.00 TOTAL ANTICIPATED TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE FUNDS

Additional funds may be obligated via Amendment(s). Funds may only be obligated and expended during the current 

Contract Term.  Unexpended fund balances will be recaptured.

BUDGET FOR AVAILABLE ALLOCATIONS

FUNDSCATEGORIES

$ 65,953.00 Administration2

$ 677,435.00 Materials / Program Support / Labor3

$ 169,359.00 Health and Safety4

$ 912,747.00 SUB-TOTAL

1

$ 2,000.00 Training and Technical Assistance5

$ 914,747.00 TOTAL

Denotes that the Subrecipient must request in writing any adjustment needed to a budget category before the 

Department will make any adjustments to the budget categories. The only categories that can be reduced are the 

Administrative, Training and Technical Assistance and/or  the Health and Safety categories. Subrecipient is limited 

to two (2) requested budget revisions during the current Contract Term. Only those written request(s) from the 

Subrecipient received at least forty-five (45) days before the end of the Contract Term will be reviewed. The 

Department may decline to review written requests received during the final 45 calendar days of the Contract 

Term.

1

FOOTNOTES TO BUDGET FOR AVAILABLE ALLOCATIONS:

Department approved training / travel only.5

Denotes the maximum allowed for Health and Safety expenditures.4

Expenses incurred under Roof Repair will come out of your Materials / Program Support / Labor budget.3

Denotes maximum for Administrative based on 7.21% of total allowable expenditures.2

Page 3 of 4Page 7



PERFORMANCE

These costs shall be reported on the final report described in Section 10 of this Contract.

Grantees are advised that any weatherization work must be completed and inspected, and all necessary monitoring and 

follow-up activities must be completed, by the performance period end date of the contract.  If costs are incurred after 

the performance period, these costs must be covered by another funding source.  The following exception is minimal 

administrative costs that may be insurred within 45 days after the performance period end date for closeout and final 

reporting.  

Work orders must be submitted to weatherization contractors no later than March 31, 2022 for any weatherization 

activities to be completed under this Contract.  All weatherization activities including final inspection must be completed 

no later than March 31, 2022.

Subrecipient shall provide weatherization program services sufficient to expend the funds under this Contract during the 

Contract Term. WAP costs per unit (materials, labor, and program support), excluding health and safety expenses, shall 

not exceed $8,000.00 per unit without prior written approval from the Department.  The cumulative total cost per unit 

(materials, labor, and program support), shall not exceed the maximum allowable by end of the Contract Term.

Page 4 of 4Page 8



Texoma Council of Governments
- LIHEAP 1/1/2021-12/31/2021 - Unposted Transactions Included In Report

From 1/1/2021 Through 10/31/2021

Total Budget - 

Original

Current Period 

Actual

Project to Date 

Actual Budget Balance

Percent Total 

Budget 

Remaining - 

Original

REVENUES

      000             None

         4000 Federal Revenue 914,747.00 726,842.45 726,842.45 (187,904.55) (20.54)%

            Total None 914,747.00 726,842.45 726,842.45 (187,904.55) (20.54)%

      Total REVENUES 914,747.00 726,842.45 726,842.45 (187,904.55) (20.54)%

ADMINISTRATION

      000             None

         6614 Travel 2,000.00 750.30 750.30 1,249.70 62.48%

            Total None 2,000.00 750.30 750.30 1,249.70 62.48%

      220             Admin

         5000 Salaries 15,791.38 12,577.13 12,577.13 3,214.25 20.35%

         5010 Salary Longevity 0.00 124.20 124.20 (124.20) 0.00%

         5090 FICA/Medicare 1,208.02 971.63 971.63 236.39 19.57%

         5100 Unemployment 
Insurance

356.97 104.97 104.97 252.00 70.59%

         5110 Workers 
Compensation

144.47 104.92 104.92 39.55 27.38%

         5115 Insurance Health 2,397.34 1,892.01 1,892.01 505.33 21.08%

         5116 Insurance Health 
CoPay Medical

18.96 18.96 18.96 0.00 0.00%

         5120 Dental 98.10 78.68 78.68 19.42 19.80%

         5200 Insurance Health 
Savings Account

362.44 287.96 287.96 74.48 20.55%

         5210 Insurance Life 17.68 14.18 14.18 3.50 19.80%

         5230 Employee Assistance 
Program

12.27 12.27 12.27 0.00 0.00%

         5240 Retirement 1,056.44 840.14 840.14 216.30 20.47%

         5910 Indirect G&A 6,663.80 5,332.69 5,332.69 1,331.11 19.98%

         6314 IT Direct Bill 500.00 305.79 305.79 194.21 38.84%

            Total Admin 28,627.87 22,665.53 22,665.53 5,962.34 20.83%

      400             Direct Salary

         5000 Salaries 4,184.21 3,451.19 3,451.19 733.02 17.52%

210 - Texas Dept Housing & Community Affairs
No Award Number

27021 - LIHEAP 1/1/21-12/31/21
20 - Client Services

Page:  1
Page 9



Texoma Council of Governments
 - LIHEAP 1/1/2021-12/31/2021 - Unposted Transactions Included In Report

From 1/1/2021 Through 10/31/2021

Total Budget - 

Original

Current Period 

Actual

Project to Date 

Actual Budget Balance

Percent Total 

Budget 

Remaining - 

Original

         5010                Salary Longevity 0.00 25.07 25.07 (25.07) 0.00%

         5090                FICA/Medicare 316.38 262.22 262.22 54.16 17.12%

         5100                Unemployment 
Insurance

275.23 23.23 23.23 252.00 91.56%

         5110                Workers 
Compensation

17.16 14.26 14.26 2.90 16.90%

         5115                Insurance Health 163.81 163.81 163.81 0.00 0.00%

         5116                Insurance Health 
CoPay Medical

334.57 254.60 254.60 79.97 23.90%

         5120                Dental 19.88 16.64 16.64 3.24 16.30%

         5200                Insurance Health 
Savings Account

24.38 24.38 24.38 0.00 0.00%

         5201                Insurance Heath 
Reimbursement Account

33.41 25.11 25.11 8.30 24.84%

         5210                Insurance Life 3.59 3.01 3.01 0.58 16.16%

         5230                Employee Assistance 
Program

1.15 1.15 1.15 0.00 0.00%

         5231                Fraud Hotline 14.70 14.70 14.70 0.00 0.00%

         5240                Retirement 291.12 241.56 241.56 49.56 17.02%

         5910                Indirect G&A 1,758.77 1,411.17 1,411.17 347.60 19.76%

            Total Direct Salary 7,438.36 5,932.10 5,932.10 1,506.26 20.25%

      496             Health and Safety

         6560                Subcontract 120,790.50 113,750.50 113,750.50 7,040.00 5.83%

            Total Health and Safety 120,790.50 113,750.50 113,750.50 7,040.00 5.83%

      540             Labor

         6560                Subcontract 234,408.37 214,917.17 214,917.17 19,491.20 8.32%

            Total Labor 234,408.37 214,917.17 214,917.17 19,491.20 8.32%

      641             Material

         6560                Subcontract 358,821.72 323,551.12 323,551.12 35,270.60 9.83%

            Total Material 358,821.72 323,551.12 323,551.12 35,270.60 9.83%

      685             Program Support

         5000                Salaries 66,322.91 50,691.34 50,691.34 15,631.57 23.57%

210 - Texas Dept Housing & Community Affairs
No Award Number

27021 - LIHEAP 1/1/21-12/31/21
20 - Client Services

Page:  2
Page 10



Texoma Council of Governments
- LIHEAP 1/1/2021-12/31/2021 - Unposted Transactions Included In Report

From 1/1/2021 Through 10/31/2021

Total Budget - 

Original

Current Period 

Actual

Project to Date 

Actual Budget Balance

Percent Total 

Budget 

Remaining - 

Original

         5008 TDHCA Training 0.00 436.75 436.75 (436.75) 0.00%

         5010 Salary Longevity 0.00 97.74 97.74 (97.74) 0.00%

         5090 FICA/Medicare 5,073.21 3,918.28 3,918.28 1,154.93 22.77%

         5100 Unemployment 
Insurance

1,311.65 302.65 302.65 1,009.00 76.93%

         5110 Workers 
Compensation

491.37 380.12 380.12 111.25 22.64%

         5115 Insurance Health 9,497.99 7,005.03 7,005.03 2,492.96 26.25%

         5116 Insurance Health 
CoPay Medical

4,168.38 3,144.78 3,144.78 1,023.60 24.56%

         5120 Dental 546.40 409.17 409.17 137.23 25.12%

         5200 Insurance Health 
Savings Account

1,437.93 1,070.50 1,070.50 367.43 25.55%

         5201 Insurance Heath 
Reimbursement Account

213.53 107.27 107.27 106.26 49.76%

         5210 Insurance Life 98.26 73.55 73.55 24.71 25.15%

         5230 Employee Assistance 
Program

37.12 37.12 37.12 0.00 0.00%

         5240 Retirement 2,953.65 1,896.85 1,896.85 1,056.80 35.78%

         5910 Indirect G&A 29,311.64 22,537.27 22,537.27 6,774.37 23.11%

         6000 Advertising 3,000.00 1,795.41 1,795.41 1,204.59 40.15%

         6135 Copier Expense 2,500.00 2,338.44 2,338.44 161.56 6.46%

         6314 IT Direct Bill 2,000.00 1,880.15 1,880.15 119.85 5.99%

         6420 Postage 1,200.00 1,056.05 1,056.05 143.95 12.00%

         6540 Software-Licensing- 1,356.89 1,356.89 1,356.89 0.00 0.00%

         6570 Supplies 16,589.25 12,393.87 12,393.87 4,195.38 25.29%

         6614 Travel 14,550.00 10,578.71 10,578.71 3,971.29 27.29%

            Total Program Support 162,660.18 123,507.94 123,507.94 39,152.24 24.07%

      Total ADMINISTRATION 914,747.00 805,074.66 805,074.66 109,672.34 11.99%

NET INCOME/LOSS 0.00 (78,232.21) (78,232.21) (78,232.21) 0.00%

20 - Client Services

210 - Texas Dept Housing & Community Affairs
No Award Number

27021 - LIHEAP 1/1/21-12/31/21

Page:  3
Page 11



 

TO: TCOG Governing Board 

DATE: November 18, 2021 

RE: Professional Services Agreement 

RECOMMENDATION 
Authorization to enter into a Professional Services Agreement with E3 Entegral Solutions, Inc. (E3). 

BACKGROUND 
This past August, we invited engineers from E3 Entegral Solutions – a design-build contractor 
headquartered in Highland Village, TX to conduct a preliminary assessment of our existing HVAC, HVAC 
control system, and lighting system.  

DISCUSSION 
E3 presented the results of its preliminary assessment and analysis to members of TCOG’s Executive 
and Audit & Finance Committee on November 11th.  

Members of the Executive and Audit & Finance Committee are recommending that the Governing 
Board enter into a Professional Services Agreement with E3 to develop a more detailed, fully 
engineered assessment of our lighting, HVAC, and HVAC control systems.   

BUDGET 
$3,100. 

Page 12



1 Client 

E3  

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Professional Services Agreement (Agreement) is entered into as of this ___ day of 
November, 2021 between E3 Entegral Solutions, Inc. (E3), with principal offices at 2040 Highland 
Village Road, Suite 100, Highland Village, TX 75077, and Texoma Council of Governments (Client) 
with principal offices at 1117 Gallagher Dr, Sherman, Texas 75090, whereby E3 agrees to perform 
certain analysis, project development, and engineering tasks in order to provide Client with an 
executable Implementation Contract with a lump sum price according to the terms and 
conditions herein.   

This Professional Services Agreement includes the Client’s facilities listed below: 

Location Address 

TCOG Building 1117 Gallagher Dr 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

E3 has completed a preliminary facility study and has worked with Client to select a scope of work 
appropriate for inclusion in an executable Implementation Contract. This scope of work will be 
developed and engineered sufficient to finalize the Implementation Contract.  

E3 will provide Professional Services related to the following scope(s) of work: 
1. HVAC replacements
2. LED Lighting Improvements
3. Other facility improvements as directed by Client

☐ The professional services fee for these services is based on a lump sum fee of -
_______dollars ($XX, XXX.00)

☐ The professional services fee for these services is based on (____%) the final project
implementation costs.

☒ The professional services fee for these services is based $0.10 per square feet of included
facility space, being $3,100.00.

TERMS: 
E3 will invoice Client upon completion of the deliverables, due Net 45. 

Page 13



2 Client 

E3  

EXECUTION: 

E3: 

By: 

Name: 

Title: 

Date: 

Client: 

By: 

Name: 

Title: 

Date: 

Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



 

TO: TCOG Governing Board 

FROM: Mindi Jones, Finance Director MJ 

DATE: November 18, 2021 

RE: FYE 2022 Cost Pool Budgets Update 

RECOMMENDATION 
Accept recommendation, if any, regarding TCOG’s FYE 2022 Cost Pool Budgets. 

BACKGROUND 
Each month the Governing Board is presented with a status update of the prior month and current 
(unreconciled) fiscal year budgets for the indirect cost allocation pool and the central service IT pool 
and afforded the opportunity to make desired changes to the general and administrative indirect cost 
allocation rate or the central service IT rate as conditions warrant. 

DISCUSSION 
The following documents are attached: prior month updated Statement of Proposed Indirect Cost for 
FYE 4/30/2022.  Status Report depicting fiscal year budget with fiscal year to date expense and 
budget balance, Statement of Central Service IT Costs for FYE 4/30/2022 Status Report depicting 
fiscal year budget with fiscal year to date expense and budget balance. 

BUDGET 
No rate changes are recommended at this time. 

Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35


	11.18.21 Draft Agenda
	2021.10.21 Meeting Minutes Draft
	LIHEAP 2021 Contract Ext (Board)
	LIHEAP Budget- 2021- Amendment
	LIHEAP Budget-2021 Through 10-30-21
	E3 PSA
	E3 Professional Services Agreement TCOG - draft
	TCOG HVAC and Control System
	11-18-2021 FYE 2022 Budget Update
	FYE 2022 Cost Pool Budget Update



